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STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 15-2957R
TO BE OPENED: 10/1/2014
TITLE: SURVEY FOR MT BEHAVIORAL RISK FACTOR SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM
ADDENDUM NO. 2
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP. These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.
Delete Section 4.2.1 in its entirety. 

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated. 
Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum. This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Rhonda R. Grandy
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP #15-2957R

	1. 
	11
	3.1.1
	Q.
It is stated that the vendor will complete an anticipated 4,200 landline telephone interviews and 1,800 cell phone interviews per year. However, Appendix B Contract, Section 4 Services to be Provided, page 24 4.A.3 and pages 25-26 4.B.1 indicate a landline requirement to collect 334 completed landline telephone interviews (stratum breakdown is still being determined), for an annual total of at least 4008 completed landline interviews. Sample size for 2015 will be based on 33.73% of the total completed interviews for a total cell phone sample of at least 2040 completes and based on a monthly distribution of 34 completes per each of the five health planning regions for a targeted 170 completes per month. 
For the financial proposal, what volume of annual landline and cell phone interviews should be used?
A.
Please base the financial proposal off of 4,008 landline interviews and 2,040 cell phone interviews.

	2. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
This section provides a range of 20-24 minutes to complete an interview. 
What length should be assumed for the financial proposal?
A.
The range is for cell phone and landline interviews. The 2015 questionnaire has not been finalized yet, but we are anticipating the averages will remain 24 minutes for landline and 20 minutes for cell phone.

	3. 
	6
	1.6.1
	Q.
Could you please specify which sections should be separated by tabbed dividers.
A.
Page 3 should read: 3.0 Overview/Background. Per Section 1.6.1, offeors must tab sections 3.1.1 thru 3.1.7, sections 4.2.1.1, 4.2.1.2, 4.2.2 thru 4.2.5 and 5.0. 



	4. 
	19
	5.1
	Q.
Do you require pricing for all 6 years, or just one?

A.
One year of pricing will be sufficient unless the Offeror suspects there will be significant price changes during the next six years.

	5. 
	29
	5.B
	Q.
It appears as if the State is expecting only 3 invoices annually. Are the first two invoices tied to completion of any specific task(s)? Would the State consider an alternate invoicing plan?
A.
The first two invoices are for start-up costs and the first months of data collection. The final invoice is for completion of data collection and the project deliverables and is only to be paid once the deliverables are received. However Montana is willing to consider an alternative invoicing plan.

	6. 
	
	
	Q.
Who is the current vendor?  
A.
University of Missouri – Columbia, Health and Behavioral Risk Research Center

	7. 
	
	
	Q.
What is the current volume and cost per interview? 
A.
The current average number of landline completes per month is 402 and the average number of cell phone completes per month is 203. The cost per interview for both landline and cell phone is $62.

	8. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
The RFP states the contract period will begin on December 1, 2014. Section 3.1.2 states, "Pretests of the questionnaires must be conducted with a sample of at least 25 adults and completed prior to January 1 of each survey year.” Will a pretest of the 2015 questionnaire need to be completed by January 1, 2015 when the contract period will have started just one month earlier (December 1, 2014)?

A.
For the first year of the contract, there will be some leeway and pretesting may go into January if necessary. Pretesting is essential to make sure the programming and skip patterns are correct. For the following years of the contract, pretesting should be completed by January 1st.

	9. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
Section 3.1.2 also states, "State-added questions that are new to the State or have never been used in the State must be pilot-tested with at least 50 sampled adults prior to December 15 preceding the new survey year. A written report of the pre-test results with recommendations for improvement shall be provided for review to the DPHHS BRFSS Coordinator prior to survey implementation.” Will a pilot-test need to be completed by December 15, 2014 when the contract period will have started just two weeks earlier (December 1, 2014)?

A.
There are no questions on the 2015 questionnaire that will require pilot testing. Pilot testing may be required in future years of the contract.

	10. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
How has the pretest of the CATI system-generated questionnaire been implemented in past years? Is the contractor required to purchase sample for the pretest? Please confirm or refute our assumption that pretesting the landline version of the questionnaire (with landline telephone sample) is sufficient to fulfill this requirement.

A.
Pretesting with the landline sample is sufficient.

	11. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
Is it acceptable to pilot test new state-added questions via adding the questions to the end of the current year survey for a brief data collection window? If not, what approach has been used in the past years for pilot test data collection? What data collection approach would a new MT BRFSS data collection contractor be expected to take for pilot test data collection in the first year of the contract if a pilot test is indeed required?

A.
It is acceptable to pilot test new state-added questions by adding them to the end of the current year survey. There are no questions on the 2015 questionnaire that will require pilot testing.

	12. 
	12
	3.1.2
	Q.
The RFP states, "Occasionally the number of additional questions may become too large for a single questionnaire. In response, it may be necessary to implement a split-sample design whereby all respondents get the same questions through the end of the CDC core and are then randomly assigned to one split for additional questions. Split-sample design can add significant complexity to data collection and management procedures and the Offeror should address how this can be implemented if necessary." Has Montana used a split-sample design in recent years? If so what years? Does Montana anticipate using a split-sample design in 2015?

A.
Montana used a split-sample design in 2013. There will not be split-sample for 2015.

	13. 
	12
	3.1.3
	Q.
Does Montana currently implement advance letter pre-notification for BRFSS?
A.
No.

	14. 
	12
	3.1.3
	Q.
Does Montana currently leave answering machine messages on the landline and/or the cell phone BRFSS?

A.
Yes.

	15. 
	13
	3.1.4
	Q.
Language in this section (i.e., “Particular reference to the following items should be submitted in proposals: interviewer training and interviewer experience”) indicates interviewer experience should be addressed in the proposal under this section. However, interviewer experience is also required content in Section 4.2.3, page 17 (i.e., “Include the average (and range) of length of service for all interviewers that will be involved in this contract.”). Is there a preferred location for this content? 
A.
Section 3.1.4 is asking for information regarding data quality control that pertains to interviewers, specifically proper interviewer training and monitoring. Section 4.2.3 should include staffing information of interviewers, i.e., number of interviewers available to work on the project and the average past experience.

	16. 
	13-14
	3.1.5
	Q.
What was the 2013 Montana BRFSS completed interview per hour (CPH) for landline? What was the 2013 CPH for cell phone? What is the 2014 year-to-date Montana BRFSS CPH for landline? What is the 2014 year-to-date CPH for cell phone?  
A.
In 2013, Montana was averaging 1 CPH for landline and 0.85 CPH for cell phone. In 2014, Montana is averaging 0.75 CPH for both landline and cell phone.

	17. 
	14
	3.1.5
	Q.
What were the 2013 Montana BRFSS AAPOR #4 response and AAPOR #2 (cooperation) rates for both landline and cell phone? What are the 2014 year-to-date Montana BRFSS AAPOR #4 response and AAPOR #2 (cooperation) rates for both landline and cell phone?

A.
All rates are calculated using the AAPOR #4 response rate formula and the AAPOR #2 cooperation rate formula. The 2013 landline response rate was 56.5% and the cooperation rate was 67.2%. The 2013 cell phone response rate was 58.6% and the cooperation rate was 78.2%. The 2014 year-to-date landline response rate is 52.2% and the cooperation rate is 73.3%. The 2014 year-to-date cell phone response rate is 56.6% and the cooperation rate is 86.2%.

	18. 
	13
	3.1.5
	Q.
What was the average interview duration for the 2013 landline survey? What was the average interview duration for the 2013 cell phone survey? What is the year-to-date average interview duration for the 2014 landline survey? What is the year-to-date average interview duration for the 2014 cell phone survey?  
A.
In 2013 the average landline interview was 26.01 minutes and the average cell phone interview was 23.14 minutes. For 2014 year-to-date, the average landline interview is 23.4 minutes and the average cell phone interview is 20.66 minutes.

	19. 
	14
	3.1.6
	Q.
What was the 2013 Montana Asthma Callback Survey CPH for landline? What was the 2013 Montana Asthma Callback Survey CPH for cell phone? What is the 2014 year- to-date Montana Asthma Callback Survey CPH for landline? What is the 2014 year-to-date CPH for cell phone?

A.
The 2013 asthma callback CPH for landline and cell phone are unknown. Due to a change in contractors halfway through 2014, Montana does not have enough data to calculate CPH for the asthma callback at this time.

	20. 
	14
	3.1.6
	Q.
Will the contractor be required to send the notification letters for the potential web-based follow-up survey or will the letters be sent by the Department of Public Health and Human Services (DPHHS)?

A.
For 2015, Montana will not be participating in the web-based survey and therefore there will be no need for notification letters. Please do NOT include the cost of notification letters in your financial proposal. However, if Montana does participate in future years it would be the contractor’s responsibility to mail the letters. 

	21. 
	14
	3.1.7
	Q.
What exact information is the DPHHS seeking regarding “time estimates”? (The Offeror must explain in the work plan the tasks, staff, time estimates, and schedule to conduct the BRFSS as stated in the Scope of Services described above.) If the information being sought here is redundant with Section 4.2.3, page 16 (i.e., hours per week), is there a preferred location for this content?

A.
Section 3.1.7 is asking about dedicated staff hours to the Montana BRFSS. Section 4.2.3 is asking, overall how many hours each staff member works per week.

	22. 
	19
	5.1
	Q.
What is 2014 MT BRFSS budget? What percentages of the 2014 budget are allocated to the landline survey, the cell phone survey, and the asthma callback surveys?  
A.
There has been a significant budget reduction for 2015 and the 2014 budget should not be taken into consideration. As stated in the RFP, the budget cap is $325,000.
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